Fort Myers CGeneral Enpl oyees Pension
Boar d

Board Meeting Minutes
February 16, 2011
Fourth Floor Conference Room
2200 Second Street
Fort Myers, Florida

PRESENT: Cecile Mazzio, Chairperson; Leif LusNg¢ce-Chairperson; Donna
Lovejoy, Secretary; Barbara Carlson, Board Membrichard Griep, Board
Member; Thomas O’Malley, Board Member; Eloise Pagton, Board Member;
Debra Emerson, Pension Manager. Guests: PatrickkDoRoster & Foster; Mike
Seagle; Sarah Westwood, Moody Aldrich Partners

ABSENT: None

The Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board iNtg&tas called to order at
9:02 O’clock A.M.

Ms. Emerson stated that representatives from Mo&janley Smith Barney are
present at the meeting, as it has been request&emipr Management to review
all of the City’s pension plans.

Item | — Approval of Minutes|

Ms. Carlson motioned to approve the December 15, 2010 meeting minutes,
seconded by Ms. Pennington, and unanimously approved by the Board.

Item 1l — Moody Aldrich Partners Investment Manager ~ Sarah Westwood

Sarah Westwood, Associate Portfolio Manager, peidan informative
presentation utilizing documentation titlellloody Aldrich Partners Investment
Management about Moody Aldrich Partners’ organization, investriphilosophy
and process, composite structure, and performance.

Ms. Mazzio questioned if the sale of the NY Stockcliange will affect Fort

Myers’ pension plan investments. Ms. Westwoodestathe believes that the
change will not affect investors; the stock exclesigould continue to function as
usual. Ms. Mazzio questioned if it would be owrt®dthe Country Germany;

Ms. Emerson agreed.

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites February 16, 2011 Page 1 of 13



Item 11l — Foster & Foster Explanation of Letter ~ Patrick Donlan|

Mr. Donlan stated that Fort Myers received a lettemm the Division of
Retirement identifying a typographical error in @08 Valuation Report. The
number, which is located in the section providirggmal costs, administrative
expenses, and payment of unfunded actuarial acdiabdity, was listed as
13.3% and should be 14.4%. He reassured board mertiis Foster & Foster
has improved its process, as the firm now has aktisethat must be signed off
by two people to identify possible errors. A regifeom a reputable firm has also
been hired to review the report before it is redgias

The Division of Retirement agreed to Fort Myers imgkthe correction in the
2011 report. He apologized stating that the City make up the difference this
year or next year. Mr. Griep questioned if a fungdshortage was created by the
typographical error. Mr. Donlan stated it causeshartage of 1.1% of payroll.
He confirmed that payroll was $27,266,000 therefb®% is $299,933 and the
City over contributed $37,000 for a difference 863,298.

Ms. Emerson indicated that she has yet to notéyGity. Mr. Donlan stated that
the future funding requirement will be reduced otiee City makes the additional
contribution and the assets are higher in the pangian. Ms. Mazzio stated that
the Board discussed implementing a fixed contrdyutiate for the City, which
would work out during the good times and bad. Maonlan stated that the
concern is the unfunded actuarial accrued liabilibe extra contribution will
serve to reduce it.

Item IV — Election of Officers

Ms. Emerson confirmed that it is time for the Boawl elect officers, a
Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and Treasurer.

Mr. Griep motioned for the existing officers to remain for another term, seconded
by Ms. Pennington, and unanimously approved by the Board.

Mr. Griep stated that Barbara Carlson’s term exgppme April 30, 2011 and Cecile
Mazzio’s on April 19, 2011. He confirmed that MZarlson was union appointed
and Ms. Mazzio pension board appointed. Ms. Loyejoestioned if the Board
would appoint a new chair if Ms. Mazzio leaves ipri#§ Ms. Emerson agreed.
Ms. Mazzio stated that she will remain as longh@sBoard desires. Ms. Emerson
stated that she will not have to address City Civéimiceither position.

Ms. Pennington motioned to retain Ms. Mazzio as a Board member for another
two year term, seconded by Mr. Griep, and unanimously approved by the Board.

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites February 16, 2011 Page 2 of 13



Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites February 16, 2011 Page 3 of 13



Item V — Records Management Liaison Officer Letter

Ms. Emerson stated that she received a letter 8ooit Christiansen, which was
provided to Board members, indicating that the Baawust ensure that it has a
Records Management Liaison Officer. Ms. Emersorfiocord that Marie Adams
is the General Board’s Records Management LiaisihiceD. The letter indicates
that someone other than a pension board membdyecaamed and Ms. Adams is
the Officer for the City. Ms. Emerson stated thae will confirm whether the
Board needs to file a resolution with the Divisioh Library and Information
Services.

Item VI — Additional Business

Buyback After Termination Ordinance Update

Ms. Emerson stated that she received the Ordinfnoee Scott Christiansen
however the City Manager has instructed her to waitili negotiations are
finalized so that all pension related requestspaesented to City Council at the
same time. Ms. Lovejoy stated this is a conflitttiee Board’s interest. The
Board’s function is to preserve the benefits to éhgployees and ensure equity.
The changes that may arise as a result of negoigatre unrelated to the pension
board. The trustees may need to write a lettergdesang with Mr. Mitchell's
position because the pension board’s duties diffan the duties of the union.
Ms. Emerson disagreed stating that this is not#s® anymore because the union
contract states all changes to the pension plan bausegotiated. Ms. Emerson
confirmed that she will obtain Scott Christiansetégal advice regarding the
matter, with Board agreement.

Mr. Donlan stated the general rule is that all pemghanges are negotiable in
Florida and therefore subject to bargaining. Hosveas it has occurred often in
the past, the City and Union can waive their riginid the Board can proceed to
City Council. It appears however that the Cityreatly wants to bargain all

pension related issues. Ms. Emerson stated thatdtcontract. Ms. Carlson

stated that it is more important because the Gitglieady asking to reduce the
multiplier in the workshop therefore she believegergthing needs to be

considered by the members and negotiated.

Ms. Lovejoy questioned the fairness when a largeugrof the pension
participants are not represented and recommendasdtiih Board send a letter
requesting Mr. Christiansen’s opinion. She is wasi the benefit should be
combined because it will be viewed as a positivange to possibly offset a
negative; this was not the original intent. It waiended to be a positive change
because of an existing problem. The City is engeimto a similar environment as
it has been in recent times and the Board is modjfyhe ordinance to resolve
future potential issues. Mr. Donlan stated a bualgkia designed so that there is

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites February 16, 2011 Page 4 of 13



no impact to the City. Ms. Lovejoy stated that tkason for the ordinance is
because employees believed it was unclear. Thkegatiknow the option existed
therefore the ordinance provides for an additi@iatiays after termination for the
employee to research and comprehend the information

Ms. Carlson stated that just because employeesotipay dues, they are still
covered by the benefits of that contract therefor@does cover all. Mr. Lustig
stated that it does not cover for protection budaes with negotiations. Ms.
Lovejoy stated that it does not cover for many gsinunion members have an 18
month call back and non union members only havenbaths. Ms. Carlson
stated that it does not stop them from attendirdylestening. Ms. Mazzio stated
that they were turned away the last time. Mr. O'lgpalstated he will open the
next meeting to everyone. Ms. Mazzio stated thateetings should be open to
all. Mr. O'Malley stated that he believes all eoy#es should have the same
information before they vote.

Ms. Pennington questioned if Ms. Emerson will wrige letter to Scott

Christiansen. Ms. Emerson responded that she athrhicl. Ms. Pennington

stated that a letter is more concrete. Ms. Lovegayed that Mr. Christiansen will
have to respond in writing and the Board can ugeftin backup should it decide
to request the City Manager to reconsider. Msnigton stated that Mr. Donlan
raised a valid point about the union officially wialg the requirement. Mr.

O’'Malley stated that he can address the issue atiageneral membership
meeting. Ms. Emerson explained that all items ested for the City Council

agenda must be reviewed by the City Manager. Mtchdll indicated that he has
no problem with the ordinance he just prefers tdress all pension issues at
once. Ms. Mazzio stated that the other issue ctakd months. Ms. Lovejoy

stated that it could go to impasse.

Mr. Griep stated the pension board trustees haiguaiary responsibility to the
pension plan and its members. There are two grotipsople, exempt and union.
It appears that the exempt employees have to sutontihe benefits that are
negotiated by the union. He questioned if there axger a time when there were
different benefits between union and exempt em@syeMs. Emerson stated that
this would require a separate pension plan. Mrefsstated that the Board is
proposing a change to the pension plan and nosvsitibject to whether the union
is doing it. Ms. Lovejoy agreed stating she issfioming whether the pension
board has lost its ability to enact recommendatiand changes because of a
clause in the union contract and if so, is this?”faiMs. Emerson stated that the
other two pension plans are concerned about thisveds because the union
decides what will occur for the whole.

Mr. Donlan confirmed that there is no financial imep however it is a change in
the ordinance. Ms. Lovejoy stated that she ismaking this an exempt versus
non-exempt issue. Her concern is about the pertsoaind’s ability to conduct

business as necessary. Ms. Emerson confirmedhithaxempt employees were

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites February 16, 2011 Page 5 of 13



involved in the tier process however they wereindhe DROP and PLOP. Ms.
Lovejoy questioned if the Board was not requiredytothrough the union last
year for the legislative language modifications daese it was not requesting a
change in benefits.

Mr. Griep confirmed that Ms. Emerson is indicatitihg Board’s abilities have

been diminished because of a change in the uniotrami three years ago; Ms.
Emerson agreed. Mr. Donlan stated that the Boavémhad the ability to adopt

an ordinance; Ms. Emerson agreed. Ms. Lovejoyeafstating that the Board

has the ability to make recommendations and bhegitforth. Mr. Donlan stated

that the Board can still do this. Ms. Lovejoy resged that it cannot unless the
union approves it. When both sides waive theintsgit can go directly to the

City Council. This has not changed the responsdslof the pension board.

Mr. Lustig questioned if the change in union bi-$anow requires the Board to
bring the proposal to the union for a membershite vaMs. Emerson stated that
the membership has to agree that it wants the ehlimmgugh a vote. Mr. Lustig

guestioned if the vote would be open to exempt eygads. Ms. Emerson stated
that it would not. Mr. Donlan stated that thisaiproblem everywhere. It may be
sensible to have two parts to the pension plarwordeparate plans for exempt
and non-exempt. Ms. Lovejoy stated the other issubat the average age of
union employees is much lower and their prioritieesy be much different.

Ms. Pennington stated that there are two diffetgpes of voting, ratification and
voting for officers. Mr. O’Malley confirmed that ewone can vote for
ratification of the contract. Ms. Mazzio statedittlthis excludes those non-
association members. Mr. O’Malley stated that hi discuss the issue with his
membership at the March "14neeting. Mr. Lustig stated that he is uncleathan
legality of the situation and would like the atteyr's opinion. Mr. O’'Malley
stated that he is willing to proceed with a votehé issue continues past his
March meeting. Mr. Lustig stated he understands the process has changed
however there is no cost to the City; it will behefmployees. Ms. Carlson
guestioned if there is a way to implement a retiivaadate which would cover
everyone; Ms. Emerson agreed. This would provitktytdays from when the
ordinance was passed. Mr. Griep added, with n@anhio the City. Ms. Lovejoy
stated that there would be no impact to the empg®yleecause it would be
retroactive; they would be charged at the ratdefexisting cost with no fees.

Ms. Mazzio stated that the union members can agpib\however the city
manager still has to agree. Ms. Pennington questiof legally, the union can
waive its right. Ms. Lovejoy questioned if the mayalways approved council
agenda items prior to the City adopting a city nggmdorm of government. Mr.
Donlan stated that long ago he had an issue tordegbt forward for the Fire
Board. They had to include the information on agBr&heet, just as required by
the current city manager. There was a time whey thent around the city
manager by bringing the issue before City Counaiirdy the public comments

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites February 16, 2011 Page 6 of 13



section, which allowed for fifteen minutes of spiegk Ms. Emerson stated that
once the membership approves it, the Board carrnmfidr. Mitchell that the
procedure was followed, the membership is readyntive forward with the
ordinance, and there is no cost to the City. Mavdjoy stated that she can
understand the City Manager’s perspective becdese is a cost associated with
it. They have to do an ordinance which outlines diptions, conduct the public
hearing, and advertise. She is however unsuteeibenefit outweighs the cost.
Ms. Pennington stated that timing is important.

Third Party Pension Administrator

Mr. Griep stated that Ms. Emerson is Fort Myershgien plan administrator
however she is also a City of Fort Myers employé®e Was to answer to the City
Manager. He believes that Ms. Emerson was orilyimaded as the administrator
working solely for the Board and later became g €imhployee. He questioned if
the Board may have interest in hiring a third padyninistrator who would work
solely for the pension board, not the City. CapeaChas two people working for
them from a firm out of Boca Raton. He believes/thmvide services to all three
pension plans. There are other third party adrmat®rs; he is unsure about the
cost or what the benefits would be for having tbenmistrator working directly
for the pension board. He questioned if the Baarthterested in investigating
this type of arrangement.

Ms. Mazzio questioned how the third party admiaistr would work with the
person working for the City as Ms. Emerson doesfithe Board’s work. Ms.
Emerson stated that they would do it all. Mr. @rsgated that they would keep
the minutes and records and do all of the work.. B4serson stated that it would
involve everything she currently does. Mr. Lusiigestioned what would be the
benefit to make the change. Mr. Griep stated Bwt Myers would have an
administrator independent of the City. He is ursuhat the benefit would be; he
is just bringing it up for investigation.

Ms. Mazzio stated that if the pension board decitedhove forward, the City
will be paying for it. She questioned how the Bbawould get the City to agree.
Mr. Griep stated that it would come from the pendionds. Ms. Lovejoy stated
that it would be an additional cost to the pensoben because currently Ms.
Emerson is performing on behalf of the pension tdart paid for by the City.
Much like when Ms. Emerson worked for the pensioard it was an expense to
the pension plan. This would be an expense nerdift than the fees paid to
investors. Mr. Griep stated it would include thestc@f having the minutes
transcribed. Ms. Mazzio questioned who would oxerthe budget; Mr. Griep
replied the Board. Ms. Mazzio stated that the Baamever consulted about the
budget. Ms. Lovejoy stated that there are twosparthe budget, one is allocated
to Ms. Emerson and her pension duties relatededCity as established through
the City Council. The other portion is allocatemvard expenses related to
records.

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites February 16, 2011 Page 7 of 13



Ms. Emerson stated that Fort Myers would be payamgther party to be

administrator. Ms. Lovejoy stated that it would doe extra cost shared by all of
the beneficiaries. She questioned if this wouldaldgenefit and how much is it
worth. Mr. Donlan stated that from the City's gestive, the cost should not be
much of a difference because it is paying Ms. Eorésssalary and part of that
salary includes administration of the fund.

Mr. Donlan stated that most of the budget is culyenllocated toward Ms.
Emerson’s salary. The new way would be more of at ¢o the pension
administrative expenses. Ideally, he believes ékpenses will not be much
different. Ms. Lovejoy stated that the expensesildmot be different however
the pension plan paying them would be. Mr. Dordtated that the City pays
them anyway. The administrative expenses are dedun the normal cost to
administrative expenses in the payment of the uddn The question is what are
the funding requirements to the City. If $50,00@svadded to the pension plan’s
administrative expenses, the cost would increasappyoximately one-half of a
percent of payroll. Ms. Lovejoy stated that thetcoould increase toward the
City’s contribution therefore this is a direct erpe to them.

Mr. Donlan stated that the Police and Fire Boamgehappointed administrators.
The current Fire pension plan administrator, Gregréers, indicated to him that
the Fire Board should hire Ms. Emerson becauseoitldvbenefit the members.
She is easily accessible and employees can reperg®nal attention obtaining
answers immediately versus a third party admirtistrevhere they cannot. Ms.
Mazzio stated that Ms. Emerson knows everyoneearClity.

Ms. Emerson stated that as the fund administratothis pension plan and even
working for the City, her focus is on the membe8he arrives at work very early
spending her day working on the General Employadsfeshe has to do work for
the City it is done in a different timeframe. Siresures that all retirees are being
paid and if a problem arises she is availableHent. Mr. Griep questioned if Ms.
Emerson is administrator for the Police Plan. MseEson responded that she
always attends their meetings however she is notirastrator. It is okay to
consider other options, however this arrangemeniiking. The retirees know
her; they like the personal contact. Mr. Griepeagk Ms. Emerson stated that
she does not have a loyalty to either entity. &bes her job for the pension plan
and she does her job for the City; there is nolainf

Ms. Emerson recommended that future presentatm@sty Council be provided
by a trustee rather than her because it may caurdasion as to the source of the
recommendation. Ms. Lovejoy agreed stating shieved there was confusion at
last year's workshop because when Ms. Emerson mexsethe pension
alternative, she was viewed as a pension boaréseptative. This is unfortunate
because it was not the view of the pension boaddtlaa trustees did not have the
ability to provide input. She believes that thistiee source of Mr. Griep’s
concern.

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites February 16, 2011 Page 8 of 13



Ms. Lovejoy stated that she also understands tier gierspective. Ms. Emerson
is located at the City and this is positive to @mployees who need her. What
should occur is that employees must be made torstaael what Ms. Emerson’s

role is specific to the task. Ms. Emerson stateat & trustee from the Board
should present when it comes to changing the pengian. Board members

agreed. Ms. Emerson stated that a Board membetdshe present at employee
workshops to communicate that he or she is speakingehalf of the General

Board.

Ms. Mazzio stated that Police and Fire were spepkinone of the City Council
meetings and there was not an Employees’ Assoniakpresentative so she
spoke as the General Pension Board Chairpersomusethe General Plan was
not represented. Ms. Lovejoy stated that she bedidds. Mazzio was viewed as a
union representative not pension board.

Buyback After Termination Ordinance Update

Ms. Lovejoy was questioned by an employee abouttitesn COLA is on the
tiers. Ms. Emerson responded that it is 2.5%. Dbnlan stated that it is 2.5%
on two of the tiers and the other a $200.00 suppiegmMs. Lovejoy questioned
what prompted the multiplier increase from 2.1%3t6% in 1998 and was an
actuarial study performed to determine the fundieguirement. Ms. Emerson
stated that the funding requirement was providethéoCity. Ms. Mazzio stated
that Mayor Grady initiated it because he wanteatange the pension plan to
contributory. The multiplier increased in segmeits from 2.1% to 2.55% for
one year and then to 3.0% at the time of the neat’y pay increase.

Ms. Carlson stated that the annual pension statisnséow the years at 2.1% and
3.0% but not 2.5%. Mr. Donlan stated that the 2vlds for service before 4/2/98
and the original ordinance states that it is 2.9586ause it was after 4/2/98
however it was approved retroactive. Ms. Emers@ted that contributions
began in 1998. Employees started by contributi2§cltoward the 2.5%. Ms.
Lovejoy stated it cost 1.2% when the employeestestacontributing. Ms.
Emerson confirmed that she has copies of the andena The multiplier changed
in April 1998, one month, from 2.55% to 3.0%. Th@nOctober 1998, the
employee’s contribution increased from 1.2% to 2.4%he 2.4% to 3.1% had
nothing to do with the multiplier; it decreased timmal retirement age from 65
to 62, the Rule of 90 to the Rule of 80, and othemefits. Ms. Lovejoy stated
that the real cost associated with the 3.0% midtiplvas 2.4% based on an
actuarial study.

Ms. Emerson confirmed stating that other items wehanged. The early
retirement reduction rate was changed to 4.0% d&che/ear prior to age 62 and
the salary definition was changed to include owegti Mr. Donlan stated that if
he performed a study now to reduce the multipliemf 3.0% to 2.1%, it would

not change by exactly the same amount becauseddwe Bhanged from an 8.0%

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites February 16, 2011 Page 9 of 13



to 8.5% investment assumption at the same timeenilis change was made, it
reduced the cost and the members contributed aticad amount. This brought
it to the 3.0% benefit rate. Ms. Emerson stated ith 2001 Fort Myers went from
2.4% to 3.1%.

Ms. Lovejoy questioned if it costs 2.5% to purchase% multiplier over an
actuarial 30 year period. She stated that the @epk who approached her
believe that if the contribution is proven to bédg@ar with the .9%, then it should
be added back to the new reduced multiplier siheeemployees paid for it. For
example, if the proposed budget is at 1.6%, thityda that it should be 2.5%;
this is not a horrible reduction. Ms. Emerson stateat the other issue is
employees have not contributed enough to fund 3@ because it is over the
life of the plan. Ms. Lovejoy disagreed statingttan actuarial study was done; it
would go to retirement.

Mr. Donlan stated that the City is in its currerdspion as a result of the
investment return. Ms. Lovejoy stated that thewe @eaks and valleys over the
course of any pension plan; at times it was very lwecause the return was
extremely favorable. The status of the pensiord faannot be viewed during a
window, it must be considered over the long terkts. Emerson recommended
that the Board consider what City Council woulchthi Ms. Lovejoy stated that it
is the pension board’s responsibility to make theamare. Ms. Emerson
acknowledged Ms. Lovejoy’'s perspective however slaged that they were not
looking at a 30 year period when the impact statesneere done.

Mr. Donlan stated that it increased from 2.1% t65% and the total required
contribution increased from 10.8% to 13.2%. Themefthe 2.1% to 2.55% was
2.4% of payroll. Apparently, the City and membsemit the cost because the
members went to from 0% to 1.2%. Ms. Lovejoy canéd that the City also
contributed an extra portion toward the increasedelit; Mr. Donlan agreed.
Ms. Lovejoy stated that she was unaware of this. Dnlan stated that the total
cost was 2.4% of payroll to increase from 2.1% ®b6%. Ms. Emerson stated
that this is not for 30 years. Mr. Donlan statkedttit is for the long term. Ms.
Lovejoy stated that a member can retire one year hbwever he/she will not get
the benefit of that for more than one year. Mrnla stated that the 2.4% of
payroll cost to increase from 2.1% to 2.55% is ekge because a .1% increase in
the multiplier usually costs approximately 1% ofpdl. This is still true to this
day.

Mr. Donlan stated that he believes if a study wasdacted to go from 2.55% to
2.1%, the savings would be approximately 2.4% ofrq§ it is a long term
impact. The next increase from 2.55% to 3.0% eogither 2.4% of payroll
because the total required went from 13.2% to 15.686. Lovejoy questioned if
it was related to the increase or the investmemtme Mr. Donlan stated that it
increased from 2.55% to 3.0% costing 2.4% of paadl again the members and
the City split the cost. The members increaseth flo2% to 2.4% and the City

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites February 16, 2011 Page 10 of 13



increased from 12% to 13.2%. Ms. Lovejoy confirmihcdt the employee
increase was for the enhanced benefit to the 3.Qtpler. When it increased
from 2.4% to 3.1%, employees paid .7% for the claingthe calculation of the
benefit. Mr. Donlan stated that when the multipliecreased from 2.1% to
2.55%, members increased 1.2% and the City incdehst®6. It then increased
from a 2.55% to 3.0% multiplier and both the memsba&nd the City increased
1.2%. They are almost identical.

Mr. Donlan stated that the third change is more glarated because it involves
the following modifications:

The retirement age was changed from 65 to 62

The Rule of 90 was reduced to Rule of 80

Normal retirement at 30 years of service and ot adgded
The early retirement reduction rate was reducetdedor
each year prior to age 62

= The definition of salary was changed to includertres

Ms. Lovejoy stated that it is being questioned \wbketthis was paid for by the
.9%. Mr. Donlan stated that it was mostly paid fiy the change in the
investment assumption from 8.0% to 8.5%. Howetlex, member contribution
did increase from 2.4% to 3.1%. Ms. Lovejoy stdteat the multiplier is shared.

Ms. Mazzio questioned if the City is consideringeduction in the multiplier to
1.6%. Ms. Emerson agreed stating that it has bexided in the budget because
the Florida Retirement System (FRS) is at 1.6%. . Msvejoy stated that it
depends on the portion; there are many componerits it can be 1.6%, 1.7%.
Ms. Emerson stated that the majority of the poputais at 1.6%. Ms. Lovejoy
stated that FRS retirees receive an automatic @bdving adjustment. Ms.
Emerson agreed stating that they do not contritbesmeard this. Ms. Lovejoy
stated that retirees also receive a reduced cosnéalical. The FRS’ pension
plan and the City of Fort Myers’ plan however ao¢ @qual for comparison.

Ms. Mazzio stated that if the multiplier is redudedl.6%, all of the money that
was contributed will be lost. Mr. Donlan statedttthe change would be in effect
moving forward. Employees will receive 2.1% forsee before 4/2/98, 3.0%
for service from 4/2/98 through the date of charged 1.6% from that date
forward. Ms. Mazzio stated that members paid fand are not receiving the
same benefit that they originally paid for; this her issue. Ms. Mazzio

guestioned if the City is asking for changes initoldl to the multiplier. Ms.

Lovejoy confirmed that the City is proposing togadway the total W-2 pay. Mr.
Griep stated that this is based on a percentages. Bvherson stated that the
benefit was provided as a result of reducing thsumption. Ms. Lovejoy

guestioned if the cost was 2.4% to 3.1%. Ms. Maztated that it was not with
the W-2. Ms. Emerson stated that the W-2 was implged later. Ms. Mazzio
stated that the overtime inclusion was a beneét the Police and Fire had in

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites February 16, 2011 Page 11 of 13



their pension plans. She discussed the issuegatiations and it was denied so
the union brought it to City Council. Once it wasranunicated that 66% of other
cities include overtime in the calculation, the maggreed.

Ms. Lovejoy questioned if the annual report ideesifthe cost for the employees
who took advantage of the early out. Ms. Emersgneed. Mr. Donlan stated
that it is under benefit improvements. If a benefitprovement study was
conducted right now it would provide the normaltaoisthe pension plan and the
unfunded accrued liability. Ms. Lovejoy questiongthat is directly attributable
to the early out members receiving the .9% fooathe years they worked. Ms.
Emerson agreed. Mr. Donlan stated that it doespnotide the increase in
normal costs; it provides the unfunded actuariat@ed liability.

Ms. Emerson questioned if the City’s required paythige based on the unfunded
actuarial accrued liability; Mr. Donlan agreed stgtthere are two pieces to the
funding requirement, the normal cost to the pengian and the unfunded
actuarial accrued liability. An unfunded actuamraicrued liability was created
when the early retirement incentive occurred. Masvejoy questioned if Mr.
Donlan can identify the related contribution aseacpntage and/or dollar figure.
Mr. Donlan stated that he can include an approxena@itrrent impact for the
incentive in the report. Ms. Lovejoy stated thas twould be helpful. It has been
said repeatedly in City Council meetings that thdyeout saved the City money.
She believes the portion that is not included ésdbst to the pension plan, which
in turn is a cost to the City. Now employees aesd asked to bear the brunt of
an incentive that the City gave to a select grdupeople.

Ms. Pennington stated that the City saved mones. IMvejoy agreed stating
that the money saved should be placed in the pergen to pay for benefits
given to the early out retirees. The existing emmpés should not be penalized as
a result. Ms. Emerson stated that the City of Ryers offered incentives in
1994, 1999, and 2008. Ms. Pennington question#eitinfunded liability, which
affects the pension plan, was presented to CitynGiguMs. Emerson replied that
it was. She believes the consensus was that tiyetl@@iught it would be long-
term.

Ms. Lovejoy stated that if it really did save monéymay be a good time to
discuss another early incentive. Ms. Emerson ¢tiat the money was saved in
the numbers. Ms. Lovejoy questioned Mr. Donlan about how tlemgion board
can obtain this number. Mr. Donlan stated thatwik compose a letter
describing the current cost associated with thietles incentives with the impact
on the normal cost and unfunded liability. Ms. emy agreed that the Board
needs the current and long-term figures.

Mr. Donlan stated that the Board discussed the tfaait the members made the
additional contributions. In 1998 during the fidtange, 2.1% to 2.55%, the
City’s cost at that time was 10.8% of payroll ahdncreased to 12%. Now the

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites February 16, 2011 Page 12 of 13



cost is 28.2% of payroll. This is the City’'s argemh  However, the Board is
articulating that some of the 28.2% contributiomigesult of the early retirement
incentives. Ms. Lovejoy questioned how much ot tB&.2% is due to the IRS
rulings and State changes including the reductioramortization from thirty
years to ten. This is another component unrel@dde employees’ pension; it is
a legislative change in which the Board has norocbntMr. Donlan stated that he
will provide the information requested.

Ms. Emerson stated that the City is requesting-tmster & Foster to calculate the
cost since 2001 for the multiplier increase from92.to 3.0%. The Board must
approve the request and the City will pay for teart. Ms. Lovejoy stated that it
should also provide the employee contribution. Elwerson agreed. Mr. Donlan
stated that all of the past service was still 482. It is slightly less expensive
with a benefit improvement and only affects futuservice. The City is
considering changing future service again. Thd @pproximately 4.8% of
payroll to go from 2.1% to 3.0%. The members aitgt §plit the cost at 2.4%.
He believes it is unnecessary to perform a studyat regard. The reason why
the City’s cost has increased is the investmentrmeand the early retirement
incentive.

Ms. Lovejoy questioned if Foster & Foster can pdeviFort Myers with the
growth in percentage of contributions over the @ésyears. In the 1990’s it was
approximately 10% and now it is up to 28%. Thedmsshould show a cycle.
Mr. Donlan stated that in 1997 the City had a 2ldénefit rate and it was on base
compensation. All costs dramatically decreasectites in the 1990’s and they
implemented benefit improvements. Ms. Lovejoyedathat it could be charted
and the benefit improvements could be identifiedhe reality is that the
assumptions in the actuarial report may cost madayt however it should even
out over the course of the plan. It is currenthyumfavorable time; conditions
should improve. Next year however will be worse doi the loss of the 15% in
the four year smoothing calculation. The first e of this year has been
favorable.

Mr. Donlan stated that he will compose a lettevting the approximate impact
on the funding requirement right now as a resutheftwo recent incentives. He
will also provide the City’s contribution over tpast 20 years.

Ms. Emerson confirmed that the City will have a kahrop about the proposed
changes to the pension plan. Ms. Mazzio recommetidgdhe trustees attend to
hear the discussion. She questioned if inputée@table. Ms. Lovejoy responded
that audience members can only speak if requestadiobincil; therefore if Ms.
Mazzio would like to have input, she should meetlividually with the
Councilmembers prior to the workshop.

Mr. O’'Malley stated that in the past, employeeseatldo the contribution to
increase the multiplier. He questioned if the Cidkes more, whether the

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites February 16, 2011 Page 13 of 13



contribution goes back to the former rate. Mr. @onstated that this is the
concern being discussed. Members paid to incréreesenultiplier however the
City is going to reduce it. The City could makes treduction to 1.4% going
forward and if members want to make their 3.1% memdwontribution, it will
increase to 1.6%. There are ways around it; thenlmees have valid concerns.
The City also has valid concerns however sinceas wreviously contributing
10% of payroll and now it is contributing 28%. $hé an 18% increase therefore
the City needs to cut benefits to reduce the doutiion rate.

There being no other business to discuss, the ngeatjourned at 100 O’clock
A.M.

Fort Myers General Employees Pension Board Medfimyites February 16, 2011 Page 14 of 13



